

(120)

11 11 86

7/ 11/ 86

MEMORANDUM

SUBJECT: ICI America, Inc. Request for Data Waiver of the
Oyster Embryolarvae Test for Permethrin (EPA
Registration No. 10182-18)

FROM: Ann Stavola, Aquatic Biologist *AS*
Ecological Effects Branch
Hazard Evaluation Division (TS-769C)

TO: George LaRocca, PM 15
Insecticide-Rodenticide Branch
Registration Division (TS-767C)

THRU: Douglas Urban, Section Head
Ecological Effects Branch
Hazard Evaluation Division (TS-769C)

and

Michael Slimak, Chief
Ecological Effects Branch
Hazard Evaluation Division (TS-769C)

ICI Americas, Inc., has requested a waiver of the data requirement to conduct another estuarine mollusc acute toxicity study. The previously submitted oyster embryolarvae which was filed August 25, 1977 (EPA Accession No. 096325), was determined in the Ecological Effects Branch (EEB) review of March 25, 1986, to not meet EPA Guideline requirements for an acute estaurine mollusc study. The registrant contends that the study is valid and fulfills the data requirement.

The issue of the acceptability of the study concerns the low water solubility of permethrin (< 0.3 mg/L). In order to increase the chemical's solubility, DMSO was used as a solvent at a concentration of 480 mg/L. Even with the addition of a solvent, permethrin still precipitated in the test vessels at nominal concentrations greater than 1.0 mg/L. There were no mortalities at any of the concentrations, and the EC_{50} was

87976:Stavola:C.Disk:KENCO:7/8/86:DKD:SG

determined to be greater than the highest test concentration of 4.8 mg/L (nominal concentration) or 1.05 mg/L (measured concentration).

The earlier EPA review stated that DMSO is not an approved solvent. However, it was a commonly used and approved solvent at the time (1977) this study was conducted. Therefore, use of this solvent does not invalidate the study.

EEB will accept this study and waive the requirement for a new estuarine mollusc study if the registrant will accept our conclusion that the EC₅₀ value of permethrin to oyster embryolarvae is greater than 1.05 mg/L, based on the measured concentration. The measured concentration and not the nominal concentration of 4.8 mg/L must be used since the permethrin was only partially dissolved in the test vessels.

EEB's reasons's for accepting this study as fulfilling the data requirement are: the solubility of permethrin is less than the reported EC₅₀ value for oyster larvae (< 0.3 mg/L vs. > 1.05 mg/L), and the oyster value is considerably greater than the LC₅₀ values for other aquatic organisms (Daphnia - 0.039 ug/L, rainbow trout - 9.8 ug/L, bluegill - 6.1 ug/L, pink shrimp - 0.354 ug/L, Atlantic silverside - 2.2 ug/L). EEB does not believe that any additional data can be gained by doing another oyster study.